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COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER 
NEW YORK 

 
DIVISION OF ENGINEERING 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 
CONTRACT NO. 19-514 

 
Low Rise Building Renovations and HVAC Improvements 

110 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Boulevard 
White Plains, New York 

 
The attention of the bidders is directed to the following changes, additions, and/or substitutions 
affecting the above referenced contract. 
 
I. RE: GENERAL CONTRACT INFORMATION: 
 

A.  Low Voltage Design – NEW Drawings:  Low voltage drawings showing wiring 
requirements for security and IT systems are attached.  These are NEW drawings.  The 
drawing list has been updated and is also attached.  The work shown on these drawings is 
part of the contract work.   
 
B.  Furniture Demolition – Revised Drawings:  Demolition of all existing furniture, shelves, 
counters, millwork, etc. is by the contractor.  The demolition drawings DM-002, DM-003 
and DM–004 have been revised to provide a general description of the principal furniture 
items.  Personal effects, computers, etc. at the work positions are not to be demolished, and 
are to be moved by the contractor from their existing locations to their final locations, in 
accordance with the Phasing Plans.   
Please DELETE the previous copies of these drawings and REPLACE them with the 
attached drawings.  
 
C.  Delivery and Refuse Access – Revised Drawing:  Drawing DM-006, Ceiling Demolition 
Plan Overall, has been revised to include a diagram showing the proposed area at the 
Martine Avenue entrance driveway and adjacent areas, to locate a trailer and lifting 
equipment for the contractor’s use during construction.  The contractor is responsible for 
providing an opaque fence to shield the area from public view.   
 
The diagram also notes the approximate location of two windows to be removed by the 
contractor to allow delivery of materials and removal of refuse via chute at the 3rd Floor 
“Bridge to DPW” also known as the “Gallery” space.  The contractor will be responsible for 
removing the windows, providing temporary closure panels when the windows are not in 
use, and the replacement of the original windows when the project is complete.   
 
Use of the Bridge for material and refuse movement will be limited to hours before 9:00 AM 
and after 5:00 PM.  A minimum 4’ passageway at the Bridge must be maintained for staff 
use at all times.  The removal and abatement of the flooring, and refinishing of this space 
will be performed in the last phase of the project, instead of the first phase.   
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The information above responds to several questions below.  Please DELETE the previous 
copy of this drawing and REPLACE it with the attached drawing.  

D. Furniture Scope:  See question below for clarification of the scope of furniture that is
provided and installed by the County’s furniture vendor.

E. Special Door Glass:  Door No. 33 (A-103) shall receive new glass type GL-5: clear
laminated, tempered glass, consisting of two layers of ¼” tempered glass with a clear plastic
interlayer.

F. Parking:  Parking is the contractor’s sole responsibility.

G. Metro Wall Contact Information:  The contact information for MetroWall in spec
section 102219, Demountable Partitions, (Designation GF-2) is incorrect.  A contact for
Metro Wall is:

Ian McGregor;  845-282-9808; ian@metro-wall.com.

H. Carpet Specifications Clarifications:

1. Where C-1 is indicated on the Finish Plans, it represents a pattern consisting of both
carpet types C-1 and C-2.  The diagram on A-131, titled “CARPET PATTERN
LAYOUT C-1 & C-2 AT WEST WING CENTRAL WING AND NORTH WING
[TYP]” shows the typical layout of the two carpet colors “C-1” and C-2” where
Carpet C-1 is indicated on the Finish Plans.

2. A final selection for Carpet type C-3 is pending.  For bidding purposes, please base
your bid on the following Broadloom:  Bentley, Kings Road 8KR42, Color Sapphire
880420.

All provisions of the contract not affected by the foregoing shall remain in full force and effect. 

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND TRANSPORTATION 

By:   Hugh J. Greechan Jr., P.E. 
Commissioner 

Dated: Tuesday, June 22, 2021 
WHITE PLAINS, NEW YORK 

mailto:ian@metro-wall.com
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BIDDERS QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES  

 
WESTCHESTER COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

AND TRANSPORTATION  
DIVISION OF ENGENEERING 

 
CONTRACT NO. 19-514 

LOW RISE BUILDING RENOVATIONS AND HVAC IMPROVEMENTS 
110 DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. BOULAVARD  

WHITE PLAINS, NEW YORK 
 

The attention of all bidders is directed to the following responses to questions with regards to the 
above referenced Contract. These responses are presented for information purposes only and are not 

intended to modify the Contract. All provisions of the contract remain in full force and effect.  
Where modification is required, the bidder’s attention is directed to the addenda. 

 
# QUESTION RESPONSE 
 ADMINISTRATIVE / CONTRACTUAL  

1 

Please confirm that all work will be 
perform during normal business hours 
(7am to 3:30 pm). 

Normal work hours are 7:00 AM to 5:00 
PM. Any overtime needs to be coordinated 
with The County 48 hours in advance.  Any 
overtime work must be performed in 
accordance with the Project Labor 
Agreement (PLA).  
 

2 

Aside from abatement, will demolition 
and construction be allowed to take place 
during normal business hours.   
 

Yes.   

3 
Can abatement work be performed after 
hours? 
 

Yes.  This is preferred.   

4 

Will a freight elevator be available for the 
contractor for bringing material in and out 
of the work area? 
 

There are no freight elevators.  One 
passenger elevator will be provided to the 
contractor between 7:00 Am and 9:00 AM 
each day.  After hours (after 5:00) may be 
allowed with County approval.  Contractor 
must comply with the Project Labor 
Agreement (PLA). 
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5 

(Similarly)  Will an elevator be assigned 
to the contractor’s use to the loading, 
unloading of materials, debris?  If so 
please advise which elevators.  If not, 
what methods and time frames do you 
have in mind for bringing materials in and 
out of the spaces while working around 
occupied temporary office space.   
 

See question above and General Contract 
Information, Section I, item C., above.   

6 
Are we able to chute debris from a 
window to a dumpster on the street.   
 

See question above and General Contract 
Information, Section I, item C., above.   

7 
Are we able to leave dumpsters on the 
sidewalk below?   
 

See General Contract Information, Section 
I, item C., above.   

8 

Can you provide us with a max load and 
dimensions of the elevator to be used to 
bring the material to the third floor? 
 

Elevator door opening, 42” wide x 84” high. 
Cab, 63” deep x 59” wide x 90” high. 
Max load, 2500 lbs.. 
 

9 

What is the proposed path of oversized 
material that will not fit inside the 
passenger elevator allocated to the 
contractor? 
 

See question above and Section I, General 
Contract Information, item C., above.   

10 
Will the contractor be able to store 
materials on site? 
 

No space is available outside the work site 
for material storage.  

11 

Will there be any security measure in 
place that can potentially delay the 
contractors’ entry and exit?  Metal 
detector, sign-in sheet, ID Checking?” 
 

Please refer to the clause in the County 
General Requirements regarding security 
regulations.   

12 
Who is responsible for construction 
permits? 
 

No permit is required.   

13 

Please confirm the project has a PLA.   The project has a PLA.  Please see County 
Special Notice Project Labor Agreement 
which is included in the County’s bid 
information.     
 

14 

Phase One has a time constraint of 154 
days.  Is this inclusive of the 2 week 
moving/furniture? 
 

Yes, please include the initial personnel 
moves to temporary spaces in the 154 day 
constraint.   

15 
Are there any time constraints on the 
balance of the phases.   
 

No, except the overall 720 calendar day 
maximum in the County requirements.   



5 

16 

Where is contractor parking available? 
 

Parking is the responsibility of the 
contractor.  The County does not provide 
parking.  We are not experts on local 
parking facilities, but the White Plains Mall 
garage is across the street from the site.  
 

 ARCHITECTURAL  

17 

Who is responsible to remove & relocate 
the existing furniture & “personal” prior 
& in between Phases? 

GC to coordinate with County of the 
removal & relocation of the existing 
furniture & “personal” prior & in between 
Phases.  Please note that furniture is to be 
demolished, per Section I, General Contract 
Information item B. above.  
 

18 

Who is responsible to furnish & install the 
office furniture on drawings A-151, A-
152, A-153, A-154? 

The County furniture vendor, Creative 
Contract Furniture Inc., will be responsible 
to furnish & install the office furniture.  
The contractor is responsible for hook up of 
the electric whip at workstations to the 
power supply.  
 

19 

Who will be responsible to perform the 
Network & phone to the working desks? 

The contractor shall provide power & data 
to all work positions, including final hook 
up of electric supply to the workstation 
whips.  Please also see Low Voltage design 
drawings issued with this Addendum.  
 

20 

Could you provide us with the contact 
information of the company that holds the 
roof warranty.  
 

The roof warranty is attached.   

21 

My glazing/partition subcontractor is 
requesting clarification:  “I already had 
the spec.  It does not discern the 
difference between GF1, GFD2 & GF3.  I 
did not see this noted on the finish 
schedule, door schedule or elevations” 
 

GF-1, GF-2 and GF-3 locations are clearly 
noted on the construction plans A-102 – 
104, and on the elevations, A-200 series.  
Details for these systems are shown on 
numerous drawings, including but not 
limited to, A-430, A-431, A-432, A-433 and 
A-501.   
 
Storefront GF-1 is specified in spec section 
084113.  Office Front GF-2 is specified in 
spec section 102219.  GF-3 is covered by 
details and specs for metal fabrications and 
glazing.   
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22 

The legend on Phasing Plan Drawings G-
004 – G010 indicates temporary work 
stations and temporary countertops 
located in the temporary office spaces.  
Who is responsible for supply / 
fabrication/install/relocation/demolition of 
these items throughout the phases.  If GC 
is responsible for any of this, please 
provide info/details etc., so we may 
figure. 
 

New temporary workstations are provided 
and installed by the County’s furniture 
vendor and are not in the contractor’s 
contract.  The contractor will be 
responsible to provide electrical and low 
voltage work required for the temporary 
workstations, except that the County will 
perform final connection of computers to 
the low voltage system.   

23 

Drawing A-505 has a Furniture Schedule 
however we do not see specifications for 
these items in the spec book and schedule 
is missing many model numbers and 
manufacturers.  Please confirm GC is not 
responsible for any work related to 
furniture, or advise.  
  

Furniture listed on the referenced schedule 
is provided and installed by the County’s 
furniture vendor and are not in the 
contractor’s contract.  The contractor will 
be responsible for any electrical work 
required for the temporary workstations.   
 
Items identified by title as “Furniture” on 
drawings A-403, A-407. A-408, A-409, A-
410 and A-411 are also provided and 
installed by the County furniture vendor.  
The contractor is responsible for all 
electrical, plumbing and connecting 
architectural work.   
 

24 

Drawing has an appliance schedule which 
does have correlating specification.  
Please confirm GC is to supply and install 
these items and confirm the total 
quantities of these items are 2 microwaves 
and 2 refrigerators as shown on A-407.   
 

The correlating specification section is 
113100.  The refrigerators are shown on the 
construction plans, A-102 – A-104 and 
identifies in the legend on those drawings.  
The quantity of refrigerators noted in this 
question is not correct.  There are 
refrigerators shown at the pantries in each 
department space, which are in the 
contract.    

25 

Detail 1 on A430 notes to clean existing 
windows at both interior and exterior of 
3rd floor.  Please confirm it is the intent to 
have GC hire a window washing company 
to clean all applicable 3rd floor windows? 
Please also confirm if this scope involves 
cleaning the exterior windows at the 
bridge spanning over Dr Martin Luther 
King Jr Blvd?   
 

The contractor shall clean all interior 
surfaces, including interior window 
surfaces, at the completion of each phase in 
all areas included in the work.  Cleaning 
exterior window surfaces is not required.  

26 
Please advise if it is the intent to Self-
Level all existing floors and if so advise 
on desire thickness? 

Finished floors are to be level and uniform.  
Please assume that you will need to apply 
underlayment in accordance with spec 
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 section 035416 throughout the project area.  
 

27 

Please advise if intent for wall type 13 is 
to skim coat entire existing walls or just 
scar patch where necessary?   
 

Patch to provide a smooth finish for paint.  
Please assume that wall type 13 is typical at 
all existing piers between windows.    

28 

Door schedule says that frame associated 
with door #55 is type GF-1 storefront. 
Floor plan a-104 has the GF-1 tag at this 
door & frame, however, elevation of this 
frame & door shown in detail 10/a-221 
has gf-2 tag. Please clarify if door #55 & 
associated framing is gf-1 or gf-2. 
 
Please also clarify whether the follow 
door #’s & associated framing should be 
GF-1 or GF-2, as the same discrepancies 
between door schedule, floor plans & 
interior elevations mentioned above also 
occur at these doors/frames; #43, 55, 57, 
59, 68. 
 

The referenced doors - #s 43, 55, 57 and 59, 
are all related to the GF-1 system.  The GF-
2 indications on the elevations are incorrect.   

29 

Please advise schedule or plan indicating 
which windows are to receive shades.  
I see detail 14/A433 noted at the southern 
windows at West & central wings 
however id like to make sure no other 
windows are to receive that detail or 
shades as well.  
 

Please see the Reflected Ceiling Plan 
Legend on each Reflected Ceiling Plan 
sheet.  The third symbol from the bottom is 
identified as the shade.  The corresponding 
symbol appears at each window to receive a 
shade.  Please follow the quantities and 
locations shown on the Reflected Ceiling 
Plans.   
 

30 

Please See attached Screen Shot of North 
Wing Corridor – what is on either side of 
the 4x4 ceiling tile? Seems to be a little 
over 2’ on each side with no symbol.  
 

The question refers to Drawing A-114, 
where a portion of the ceiling and lighting 
design in the corridor dropped out of the 
plan image.  We have attached revised A-
114.  The ceiling in question is Ceiling Type 
2, which is typically used in the corridors.  
We have shown the required F-2 lights.  
The electrical drawings have not yet been 
coordinated to show these lights, but please 
be sure to include them in the scope of 
work. 
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31 

Please see screen shots of west wing and 
central wing.  Detail 17/A432 is called out 
at west wing but I think this might have 
been meant for the 4 areas at the central 
wing above the adjoining angled 
storefronts? 
 

That is correct.  The key for detail 17/A-432 
was misplaced.  It relates to the angled 
storefront in DLS (Legal)  Here is the 
correct location: 

 
 ENVIRONMENTAL   

32 

Please confirm we are to include 
abatement in our pricing.   
 

Yes, abatement is to be included in the 
bidder’s scope.  The owner will provide 3rd 
party monitoring.  
 

   
 STRUCTURAL  
   
 MECHANICAL  

33 Please provide the Controls vendor 
contact info.   

Johnson Controls / EMF.   

   
 PLUMBING  
   
 FIRE PROTECTION  

34 

Could you provide the contact information 
for the company that currently services 
the fire sprinkler system? 

For fire alarm interface:  Johnson Controls 
Fire Protection (Simplex Grinnell) Contact: 
John Boardash.  845-774-4120.  Contractor 
for piping, sprinkler heads, etc. per the 
bidder.   

   
 ELECTRICAL  

35 

Once the personnel is moved who will be 
responsible to connect tall the computers 
and re-route all the data and phone 
cabling? 
 

Please see the attached Low Voltage 
drawings noted in General Contract 
Information, item A., above.  The final 
connection of computers to the IT outlets 
will be performed by the County.   

   
 FIRE ALARM  
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36 

Could you provide the contact information 
for the company the currently services the 
fire alarm system? 
 

Johnson Controls Fire Protection (Simplex 
Grinnell) Contact: John Boardash.  845-
774-4120  

   
 AUDIO VISUAL  

37 
Is AV part of the GC Scope? Yes.  Work shown on AV-1 – AV-3 is part 

of the GC scope.  
 

   
 
 
 





Contract Drawings 1 
 
(WC DPW E Version 1/20) 

 
 

CONTRACT DRAWINGS: 

CONTRACT NUMBER 19-514 

ADDENDUM #1; JUNE 21, 2021 

The Design Drawings, as listed on the Contract Drawing Index, herewith made a part of 
these Specifications, shows in general and/or in detail the work to be done under this 
Contract and/or the various Contracts forming the entire work for the Project, as described 
herein. 
After sending the executed contract to the County and prior to the first job meeting, the 
Contractor is responsible for obtaining from Public Works, Division of Engineering, 
Michaelian Office Building, White Plains, a maximum of five gratis copies of the Contract 
Drawings and Specifications; for the Contractor’s permanent possession.  Additional sets, 
requested by the Contractor, beyond the permitted number and time limit, will be furnished 
by Public Works; but at the Contractor’s expense. 
Note:  New and revised drawings issued with the Addendum are shown in bold type. 
The DPW Drawing No. suffix has been changed from 0 to 1 on the Revised drawings.   

 DRAWING NO. TITLE SHEET NO.  

52-01-T-445-0 TITLE SHEET  T-001 
52-01-T-446-0 DRAWING LIST T-002 
52-01-A-447-0 CODE ANALYSIS G-001 
52-01-A-448-0 OCCUPANCY ANALYSIS G-002 
52-01-A-449-0 EGRESS AND FIRE RATING PLAN G-003 
52-01-A-450-0 PHASING PLAN - PHASES I G-004 
52-01-A-451-0 PHASING PLAN - PHASES II G-005 
52-01-A-452-0 PHASING PLAN - PHASES III  G-006 
52-01-A-453-0 PHASING PLAN - PHASES IV  G-007 
52-01-A-454-0 PHASING PLAN - PHASES V  G-008 
52-01-A-455-0 PHASING PLAN - PHASES VI  G-009 
52-01-A-456-0 PHASING PLAN - PHASES VII G-010 
52-01-A-457-0 PERSPECTIVE VIEWS G-011 
52-01-A-458-0 PERSPECTIVE VIEWS G-012 
52-01-A-459-0 PERSPECTIVE VIEWS G-013 
52-01-A-460-0 PERSPECTIVE VIEWS G-014 
52-01-A-461-0 PERSPECTIVE VIEWS G-015 
52-01-A-462-0 PERSPECTIVE VIEWS G-016 
52-01-A-463-0 DEMOLITION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR OVERALL DM-001 
52-01-A-464-1 PARTIAL DEMOLITION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR WEST 

WING DM-002 

52-01-A-465-1 PARTIAL DEMOLITION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR DM-003 
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CENTRAL WING 
52-01-A-466-1 PARTIAL DEMOLITION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR NORTH 

WING 
DM-004 

52-01-A-467-0 PARTIAL DEMOLITION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR BRIDGE 
TO DPW 

DM-005 

52-01-A-468-1 DEMOLITION REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - 3RD 
FLOOR OVERALL 

DM-006 

52-01-A-469-0 PARTIAL DEMOLITION REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - 
3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING 

DM-007 

52-01-A-470-0 PARTIAL DEMOLITION REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - 
3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING 

DM-008 

52-01-A-471-0 PARTIAL DEMOLITION REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - 
3RD FLOOR NORTH WING 

DM-009 

52-01-A-472-0 CONSTRUCTION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR OVERALL A-101 
52-01-A-473-0 CONSTRUCTION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR WEST WING A-102 
52-01-A-474-0 CONSTRUCTION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING A-103 
52-01-A-475-0 CONSTRUCTION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING A-104 
52-01-A-476-0 CONSTRUCTION PLAN - ROOF OVERALL A-105 
52-01-A-477-0 REFLECTIVE CEILING PLAN - 3RD FLOOR OVERALL A-111 
52-01-A-478-0 REFLECTIVE CEILING PLAN - 3RD FLOOR WEST 

WING 
A-112 

52-01-A-479-0 REFLECTIVE CEILING PLAN - 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL 
WING 

A-113 

52-01-A-480-1 REFLECTIVE CEILING PLAN - 3RD FLOOR NORTH 
WING 

A-114 

52-01-A-481-0 POWER AND COMMUNICATION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR 
WEST WING 

A-121 

52-01-A-482-0 POWER AND COMMUNICATION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR 
CENTRAL WING 

A-122 

52-01-A-483-0 POWER AND COMMUNICATION PLAN - 3RD FLOOR 
NORTH WING 

A-123 

52-01-A-484-0 FINISH PLAN - 3RD FLOOR WEST WING A-131 
52-01-A-485-0 FINISH PLAN - 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING A-132 
52-01-A-486-0 FINISH PLAN - 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING A-133 
52-01-A-487-0 FINISH PLAN - 3RD FLOOR BRIDGE TO DPW A-134 
52-01-A-488-0 PLUMBING PLAN - PUBLIC RESTROOMS AND UNISEX 

BATH 
A-141 

52-01-A-489-0 PLUMBING PLAN - STAFF RESTROOMS / LUNCH 
BREAK / JANITOR 

A-142 

52-01-A-490-0 WET ROOMS ELEVATIONS A-143 
52-01-A-491-0 WET ROOMS ELEVATIONS A-144 
52-01-A-492-0 FURNITURE PLAN - 3RD FLOOR OVERALL A-151 
52-01-A-493-0 FURNITURE PLAN - 3RD FLOOR WEST WING A-152 
52-01-A-494-0 FURNITURE PLAN - 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING A-153 
52-01-A-495-0 FURNITURE PLAN - 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING A-154 
52-01-A-496-0 SIGNAGE PLAN - 3RD FLOOR WEST WING A-161 
52-01-A-497-0 SIGNAGE PLAN - 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING A-162 
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52-01-A-498-0 SIGNAGE PLAN - 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING A-163 
52-01-A-499-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - WEST WING A-201 
52-01-A-500-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - WEST WING A-202 
52-01-A-501-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - WEST WING A-203 
52-01-A-502-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - WEST WING A-204 
52-01-A-503-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - WEST WING A-205 
52-01-A-504-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - WEST & CENTRAL WING A-206 
52-01-A-505-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL WING A-207 
52-01-A-506-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL WING A-208 
52-01-A-507-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL WING A-209 
52-01-A-508-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL WING A-210 
52-01-A-509-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL WING A-211 
52-01-A-510-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL WING A-212 
52-01-A-511-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL & NORTH WING A-213 
52-01-A-512-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL & NORTH WING A-214 
52-01-A-513-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL & NORTH WING A-215 
52-01-A-514-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL & NORTH WING A-216 
52-01-A-515-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL & NORTH WING A-217 
52-01-A-516-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL & NORTH WING A-218 
52-01-A-517-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - CENTRAL & NORTH WING A-219 
52-01-A-518-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - NORTH WING A-220 
52-01-A-519-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - NORTH WING A-221 
52-01-A-520-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - NORTH WING A-222 
52-01-A-521-0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS - NORTH WING A-223 
52-01-A-522-0 SECTIONS - WEST WING A-301 
52-01-A-523-0 SECTIONS - WEST & CENTRAL WING A-302 
52-01-A-524-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-401 
52-01-A-525-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-402 
52-01-A-526-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-403 
52-01-A-527-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-404 
52-01-A-528-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-405 
52-01-A-529-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-406 
52-01-A-530-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-407 
52-01-A-531-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-408 
52-01-A-532-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-409 
52-01-A-533-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-410 
52-01-A-534-0 MILLWORK DETAILS A-411 
52-01-A-535-0 DETAILS A-430 
52-01-A-536-0 DETAILS A-431 
52-01-A-537-0 DETAILS A-432 
52-01-A-538-0 DETAILS A-433 
52-01-A-539-0 DETAILS A-434 
52-01-A-540-0 ROOF DETAILS A-435 
52-01-A-541-0 FIRESTOPPING DETAILS A-436 
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52-01-A-542-0 WALL TYPES A-501 
52-01-A-543-0 LIGHT FIXTURES SCHEDULE A-502 
52-01-A-544-0 DOOR SCHEDULE A-503 
52-01-A-545-0 HEAD, JAMB, AND SILL DETAILS A-504 
52-01-A-546-0 FURNITURE & FINISHES SCHEDULES A-505 
52-01-A-547-0 SIGN SCHEDULE & DETAILS A-506 
52-01-A-548-0 SIGN DETAILS A-507 
52-01-A-549-0 SIGN DETAILS A-508 

   
 STRUCTURAL  

52-01-S-550-0 STRUCTURAL ROOF FRAMING & DETAILS S-101 
   
 MECHANICAL  

52-01-HV-551-0 SYMBOLS, ABBREVIATIONS, SCHEDULES, AND 
NOTES 

M-010 

52-01-HV-552-0 SCHEDULES M-011 
52-01-HV-553-0 DETAILS M-020 
52-01-HV-554-0 DETAILS M-021 
52-01-HV-555-0 AIR RISER DIAGRAM M-030 
52-01-HV-556-0 GROUND FLOOR KEY PLAN M-098 
52-01-HV-557-0 GROUND FLOOR MECHANICAL ROOM M-099 
52-01-HV-558-0 MECHANICAL PLAN – 3RD FLOOR WEST WING M-101 
52-01-HV-559-0 MECHANICAL PLAN – 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING M-102 
52-01-HV-560-0 MECHANICAL PLAN – 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING M-103 
52-01-HV-561-0 MECHANICAL PLAN – ROOF M-104 
52-01-HV-562-0 MECHANICAL PIPING PLAN – 3RD FLOOR WEST WING M-201 
52-01-HV-563-0 MECHANICAL PIPING PLAN – 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL 

WING 
M-202 

52-01-HV-564-0 MECHANICAL PIPING PLAN – 3RD FLOOR NORTH 
WING 

M-203 

52-01-HV-565-0 MECHANICAL DEMOLITION PLAN – 3RD FLOOR WEST 
WING 

M-901 

52-01-HV-566-0 MECHANICAL DEMOLITION PLAN – 3RD FLOOR 
CENTRAL WING 

M-902 

52-01-HV-567-0 MECHANICAL DEMOLITION PLAN – 3RD FLOOR 
NORTH WING 

M-903 

   
 PLUMBING  

52-01-P-568-0 SYMBOLS, ABBREVIATIONS AND SCHEDULES P-010 
52-01-P-569-0 DETAILS P-020 
52-01-P-570-0 SANITARY RISER DIAGRAMS P-030 
52-01-P-571-0 DOMESTIC WATER RISER DIAGRAMS P-031 
52-01-P-572-0 PLUMBING PLAN – 2ND FLOOR CENTRAL WING P-098 
52-01-P-573-0 PLUMBING PLAN – 2ND FLOOR NORTH WING P-099 
52-01-P-574-0 PLUMBING PLAN – 3RD FLOOR OVERALL P-100 
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52-01-P-575-0 PLUMBING PLAN - 3RD FLOOR WEST WING P-101 
52-01-P-576-0 PLUMBING PLAN – 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING P-102 
52-01-P-577-0 PLUMBING PLAN – 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING P-103 
52-01-P-578-0 PLUMBING DEMOLITION PLAN – 3RD FLOOR WEST 

WING 
P-901 

52-01-P-579-0 PLUMBING DEMOLITION PLAN – 3RD FLOOR 
CENTRAL WING 
 

P-902 

52-01-P-580-0 PLUMBING DEMOLITION PLAN – 3RD FLOOR NORTH 
WING 

P-903 

   
 FIRE PROTECTION  

52-01-SP-581-0 SYMBOLS, ABBREVIATIONS, SCHEDULES, AND 
DETAILS 

FP-010 

52-01-SP-582-0 COMBINATION SPRINKLER/STANDPIPE RISER 
DIAGRAM 

FP-030 

52-01-SP-583-0 2ND SUB-GRADE, 1ST, AND 2ND FLOOR FIRE 
PROTECTION PART PLANS 

FP-100 

52-01-SP-584-0 STANDPIPE AND SPRINKLER PLAN – 3RD FLOOR 
OVERALL 

FP-101A 

52-01-SP-585-0 STANDPIPE AND SPRINKLER PLAN – 3RD FLOOR 
WEST WING 

FP-101 

52-01-SP-586-0 STANDPIPE AND SPRINKLER PLAN – 3RD FLOOR 
CENTRAL WING 

FP-102 

52-01-SP-587-0 STANDPIPE AND SPRINKLER PLAN – 3RD FLOOR 
NORTH WING 

FP-103 

   
 ELECTRICAL  

52-01-E-588-0 SYMBOLS, ABBREVIATIONS, SCHEDULES, AND 
NOTES 

E-010 

52-01-E-589-0 DETAILS AND NOTES E-020 
52-01-E-590-0 ELECTRICAL RISER DIAGRAM AND PART PLANS E-030 
52-01-E-591-0 LOAD CALCULATION E-040 
52-01-E-592-0 ELECTRICAL PLAN – 3RD FLOOR WEST WING E-101 
52-01-E-593-0 ELECTRICAL PLAN – 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING E-102 
52-01-E-594-0 ELECTRICAL PLAN – 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING E-103 
52-01-E-595-0 LIGHTING CONTROL ONE LINE DIAGRAM E-199 
52-01-E-596-0 LIGHTING PLAN – 3RD FLOOR WEST WING E-201 
52-01-E-597-0 LIGHTING PLAN – 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING E-202 
52-01-E-598-0 LIGHTING PLAN – 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING E-203 
52-01-E-599-0 ELECTRICAL PLAN – 3RD FLOOR WEST WING - 

MECHANICAL 
E-301 

52-01-E-600-0 ELECTRICAL PLAN – 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING - 
MECHANICAL 

E-302 

52-01-E-601-0 ELECTRICAL PLAN – 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING - 
MECHANICAL 

E-303 

52-01-E-602-0 ELECTRICAL PLAN – ROOF E-304 
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 FIRE ALARM  

52-01-FP-603-0 FIRE ALARM SYMBOLS, ABBREVIATIONS, 
SCHEDULES, AND NOTES 

FA-010 

52-01-FP-604-0 FIRE ALARM MATRIX FA-020 
52-01-FP-605-0 FIRE ALARM RISER DIAGRAM FA-030 
52-01-FP-606-0 2ND FLOOR FIRE ALARM PLAN FA-098 
52-01-FP-607-0 FIRE ALARM PLAN – 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING FA-099 
52-01-FP-608-0 FIRE ALARM PLAN – 3RD FLOOR WEST WING FA-101 
52-01-FP-609-0 FIRE ALARM PLAN – 3RD FLOOR CENTRAL WING FA-102 
52-01-FP-610-0 FIRE ALARM PLAN – 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING FA-103 
52-01-FP-611-0 FIRE ALARM DEMOLITION PLAN – 3RD FLOOR WEST 

WING 
FA-901 

52-01-FP-612-0 FIRE ALARM DEMOLITION PLAN – 3RD FLOOR 
CENTRAL WING 

FA-902 

52-01-FP-613-0 FIRE ALARM DEMOLITION PLAN – 3RD FLOOR NORTH 
WING 

FA-903 

   
 AUDIO VISUAL  

52-01-AV-614-0 AV EQUIPMENT AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS AV-1 
52-01-AV-615-0 AV ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONS AV-2 
52-01-AV-616-0 AV ONE-LINE DIAGRAM AND EQUIPMENT LIST AV-3 

   
 LOW VOLTAGE  

52-01-T-617-0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS ABBREVIATIONS, 
LEGEND AND NOTES 

T-001 

52-01-T-618-0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS GENERAL NOTES T-002 
52-01-T-619-0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS PLAN – 3RD FLOOR WEST 

WING 
T-101 

52-01-T-620-0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS PLAN – 3RD FLOOR 
CENTRAL WING 

T-102 

52-01-T-621-0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS PLAN – 3RD FLOOR 
NORTH WING 

T-103 

52-01-T-622-0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS PART PLANS T-104 
52-01-T-623-0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS RISER DIAGRAM T-300 
52-01-T-624-0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS RISER DIAGRAM T-301 
52-01-T-625-0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS INSTALLATION DETAILS T-400 
52-01-T-626-0 TELECOMMUNICATIONS INSTALLATION DETAILS T-401 
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DEMOLITION PLAN LEGEND

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

EXIST. WALL/ PARTITION TO 
REMAIN

EXISTING WALL / PARTITION 
TO BE REMOVED

DEMOLITION NOTES:

1. REMOVE ALL FLOOR FINISHES AND ALL EXISTING WALL BASES IN AREA OF WORK, DOWN
TO THE CONCRETE FLOOR.

2. ALL EXISTING EQUIPMENT, CASEWORK, COUNTERTOPS, ETC. TO BE REMOVED EXCEPT WHERE 
NOTED FOR RELOCATION.

3. ALL ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING, LIGHT FIXTURES, SPEAKERS, ELECTRICAL DEVICES, PLUMBING, 
FIXTURES , ETC. TO BE REMOVED. ALSO REMOVE ALL RELATED ACCESSORIES AND SUPPORTING 
CONSTRUCTION.

4. COORDINATE DISPOSAL OF FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT WITH WCDPW FOR POSSIBLE 
SALVAGING OF USEFUL ITEMS.

5. CONTRACTOR TO TURN OVER ALL EXISTING DOOR HARDWARE TO WCDPW.

6. ALL ACCESSORY CONSTRUCTION, BLOCKING, CLIPS, TRIM-WORK, AND ALL MISCELLANEOUS 
ITEMS SHALL BE REMOVED.

7. ALL EXISTING CONDUITS, WIREMOLD AND ELECTRICAL OUTLETS TO BE REMOVED OR AS 
NOTED.

8. REMOVE ALL SURFACE MOUNTED OUTLETS, DEVICE, ETC.

9. ALL EXISTING WALLS, PARTITIONS, FLOORS, AND CEILINGS TO REMAIN THAT ARE DAMAGED 
DUE TO DEMOLITION WORK ARE TO BE PATCHED AS REQUIRED. SEE GENERAL NOTE NO. 1 ON 
CONSTRUCTION PLANS.

10. CONTRACTOR MUST COORDINATE ALL DEMOLITION WORK WITH ASBESTOS ABATEMENT 
REQUIREMENTS.

11. SEE ENGINEERING DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL DEMOLITION INFORMATION.

12. ALL ITEMS INDICATED TO BE REMOVED ARE  TO GIVE THE CONTRACTOR A SENSE OF THE 
QUANTITIES. REMOVE ALL ITEMS REGARDLESS OF THE EXACT  QUANTITIES.

13. FLOOR REMOVAL TO BE COORDINATED WITH ASBESTOS ABATEMENT PROCEDURES.

14. ALL FURNITURE AND MILLWORK IS TO BE REMOVED. THE DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED TO 
SHOW THE GENERAL SCOPE OF THE FURNITURE, BUT DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL 
FURNITURE ITEMS THAT ARE TO BE REMOVED. 

EXISTING COLUMN TO REMAIN

EXISTING DOOR TO REMAIN

EXISTING DOOR FRAME 
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING SINK, FAUCET, COUNTER, 
AND CABINETS TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING FAN COIL UNITS COVERS 
AT EXTERIOR WALLS TO REMAIN. 
PREPARE AND PAINT AFTER 
COMPLETION OF NEW FAN COIL 
INSTALLATION
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SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

EXIST. WALL/ PARTITION TO 
REMAIN

EXISTING WALL / PARTITION 
TO BE REMOVED

DEMOLITION NOTES:

1. REMOVE ALL FLOOR FINISHES AND ALL EXISTING WALL BASES IN AREA OF WORK, DOWN
TO THE CONCRETE FLOOR.

2. ALL EXISTING EQUIPMENT, CASEWORK, COUNTERTOPS, ETC. TO BE REMOVED EXCEPT WHERE 
NOTED FOR RELOCATION.

3. ALL ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING, LIGHT FIXTURES, SPEAKERS, ELECTRICAL DEVICES, PLUMBING, 
FIXTURES , ETC. TO BE REMOVED. ALSO REMOVE ALL RELATED ACCESSORIES AND SUPPORTING 
CONSTRUCTION.

4. COORDINATE DISPOSAL OF FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT WITH WCDPW FOR POSSIBLE 
SALVAGING OF USEFUL ITEMS.

5. CONTRACTOR TO TURN OVER ALL EXISTING DOOR HARDWARE TO WCDPW.

6. ALL ACCESSORY CONSTRUCTION, BLOCKING, CLIPS, TRIM-WORK, AND ALL MISCELLANEOUS 
ITEMS SHALL BE REMOVED.

7. ALL EXISTING CONDUITS, WIREMOLD AND ELECTRICAL OUTLETS TO BE REMOVED OR AS 
NOTED.

8. REMOVE ALL SURFACE MOUNTED OUTLETS, DEVICE, ETC.

9. ALL EXISTING WALLS, PARTITIONS, FLOORS, AND CEILINGS TO REMAIN THAT ARE DAMAGED 
DUE TO DEMOLITION WORK ARE TO BE PATCHED AS REQUIRED. SEE GENERAL NOTE NO. 1 ON 
CONSTRUCTION PLANS.

10. CONTRACTOR MUST COORDINATE ALL DEMOLITION WORK WITH ASBESTOS ABATEMENT 
REQUIREMENTS.

11. SEE ENGINEERING DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL DEMOLITION INFORMATION.

12. ALL ITEMS INDICATED TO BE REMOVED ARE  TO GIVE THE CONTRACTOR A SENSE OF THE 
QUANTITIES. REMOVE ALL ITEMS REGARDLESS OF THE EXACT  QUANTITIES.

13. FLOOR REMOVAL TO BE COORDINATED WITH ASBESTOS ABATEMENT PROCEDURES.

14. ALL FURNITURE AND MILLWORK IS TO BE REMOVED. THE DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED TO 
SHOW THE GENERAL SCOPE OF THE FURNITURE, BUT DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL 
FURNITURE ITEMS THAT ARE TO BE REMOVED. 
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TO BE REMOVED
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EXISTING FAN COIL UNITS COVERS 
AT EXTERIOR WALLS TO REMAIN. 
PREPARE AND PAINT AFTER 
COMPLETION OF NEW FAN COIL 
INSTALLATION
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DEMOLITION PLAN LEGEND

SYMBOL DESCRIPTION

EXIST. WALL/ PARTITION TO 
REMAIN

EXISTING WALL / PARTITION 
TO BE REMOVED

DEMOLITION NOTES:

1. REMOVE ALL FLOOR FINISHES AND ALL EXISTING WALL BASES IN AREA OF WORK, DOWN
TO THE CONCRETE FLOOR.

2. ALL EXISTING EQUIPMENT, CASEWORK, COUNTERTOPS, ETC. TO BE REMOVED EXCEPT WHERE 
NOTED FOR RELOCATION.

3. ALL ACOUSTIC TILE CEILING, LIGHT FIXTURES, SPEAKERS, ELECTRICAL DEVICES, PLUMBING, 
FIXTURES , ETC. TO BE REMOVED. ALSO REMOVE ALL RELATED ACCESSORIES AND SUPPORTING 
CONSTRUCTION.

4. COORDINATE DISPOSAL OF FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT WITH WCDPW FOR POSSIBLE 
SALVAGING OF USEFUL ITEMS.

5. CONTRACTOR TO TURN OVER ALL EXISTING DOOR HARDWARE TO WCDPW.

6. ALL ACCESSORY CONSTRUCTION, BLOCKING, CLIPS, TRIM-WORK, AND ALL MISCELLANEOUS 
ITEMS SHALL BE REMOVED.

7. ALL EXISTING CONDUITS, WIREMOLD AND ELECTRICAL OUTLETS TO BE REMOVED OR AS 
NOTED.

8. REMOVE ALL SURFACE MOUNTED OUTLETS, DEVICE, ETC.

9. ALL EXISTING WALLS, PARTITIONS, FLOORS, AND CEILINGS TO REMAIN THAT ARE DAMAGED 
DUE TO DEMOLITION WORK ARE TO BE PATCHED AS REQUIRED. SEE GENERAL NOTE NO. 1 ON 
CONSTRUCTION PLANS.

10. CONTRACTOR MUST COORDINATE ALL DEMOLITION WORK WITH ASBESTOS ABATEMENT 
REQUIREMENTS.

11. SEE ENGINEERING DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL DEMOLITION INFORMATION.

12. ALL ITEMS INDICATED TO BE REMOVED ARE  TO GIVE THE CONTRACTOR A SENSE OF THE 
QUANTITIES. REMOVE ALL ITEMS REGARDLESS OF THE EXACT  QUANTITIES.

13. FLOOR REMOVAL TO BE COORDINATED WITH ASBESTOS ABATEMENT PROCEDURES.

14. ALL FURNITURE AND MILLWORK IS TO BE REMOVED. THE DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED TO 
SHOW THE GENERAL SCOPE OF THE FURNITURE, BUT DO NOT NECESSARILY SHOW ALL 
FURNITURE ITEMS THAT ARE TO BE REMOVED. 
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REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING

1/8" = 1'-0"1 REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - 3RD FLOOR NORTH WING
N

1
A-113

ABBREVIATIONS LIST OF DEPARTMENTS AND GENERAL AREAS :

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY (DPS)
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (DOT)
DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL SERVICES (DLS)
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND NATURALIZATION (DLN)
DEPARTMENT OF LAND RECORDS (DLR)
PROCESSING UNIT (PU)
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCES (DOF)
WESTCHESTER COUNTY CLERK  OFFICES (WCC)
I.T. ROOMS (IT)
LOUNGE AND ELEVATOR LOBBY (LOU)
LUNCH /BREAK, RESTROOMS, AND JANITOR (WET)
HALLWAYS AND CORRIDORS (HLL)

1/4" = 1'-0"2 REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - WCC MAIN CONFERENCE ROOM

GENERAL NOTES:

1. ALL DEVICES SUCH AS SMOKE DETECTORS, OCCUPANCY SENSORS, CEILING MOUNTED 
CAMERA, MIC, SPEAKER, ETC. ARE TO BE LOCATED IN THE CENTER OF THE CEILING TILES
2. ALL SUSPENDED CEILINGS TO BE AT 8'-11" UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
3. ALL GYPSUM BOARD CEILILNG TO BE PAINTED P-1.
4. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO PROVIDE AN 8’ WIDE MOCK UP OF THE FULL CONSTRUCTION OF 
THE PLEXIGLASS SHIELD AT THE SITE BEFORE FINAL PRODUCTION. ADJUSTMENTS MAY BE 
MADE TO THE DESIGN BASED ON THE MOCK UP.
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PARTS LIST - PROVIDE EQUAL OR BETTER:

Tracjacks:
Clarity Cat6a TracJack
T568A/B,8 pos, Green 180 degree
TJ6A-25 Ortronics
UPC Number 662875855569
Product Line Legrand
Standard ANSI/TIA-568-C.2, UL 1863, IEEE 802.3af /
802.3at and Proposed 802.3bt Type 3 and Type 4,
FCC part 68, Subpart F and IEC-603-7 compliant

TRACJACK BLANK MODULES, PACK OF TEN
42100002-68 Ortronics
UPC Number 662875437277
Product Line Legrand 

TRACJACK FACEPLATE:
FOUR-PORT (SINGLE GANG), PLASTIC
40300546-99 Ortronics
Color Ivory
UPC Number 662875427520
Type Workstation
Number of Gangs 1
Number of Ports 4

Standard Rack:
6"D (150 mm); 7'H (2.1m) x 19"W (483 mm);
Grounded; UL Listed; Black
66353-703 Chatsworth

Chatsworth CCS Combination Cabling Section:
30162-701

Threaded Ceiling Kit Cable Runway:
11310-001

TELCO-Style Cable Runway:
12"W x 1.5"H x 4.46'L; Black; Cable Capacity - 947
11252-713

Wall Angle Support Kit:
14"W x 2"H x 2"D; Black
Part number: 11421-712

Junction-Splice Kit:
0.38"W x 1.5"H; Black
Part number: 11302-701 

Channel Rack-To-Runway Mounting Plate 6":
Part number: 12121-712

Protective End Caps:
0.38"W x 1.5"H; Black
Part number: 10642-001

ORTRONICS 2U rack mount fiber cabinet
Part number: FC02U-C

ORTRONICS 1U rack mount fiber cabinet
Part number: FC01U-C

6-LC (12 fibers) multimode
adapters with phosphbronze
alignment sleeves
OFP-LCD12MB Ortronics
UPC Number 662875593805
Product Line Legrand

48 PORT PATCH PANEL:
Clarity Cat6a 48 port angled panel -
110/6port - T568A/B - 3.5 x 19 - HD
PHA6AU48 Ortronics
Color Black
UPC Number 66287585750
Product Line Legrand
Type Panel

Clarity 6A modular patch cord, 3', yellow
MC6A03-04 Ortronics
Product Line Legrand
UPC Number 662875010999 

Clarity 6A modular patch cord, 5', yellow
MC6A05-04 Ortronics
Product Line Legrand
UPC Number 662875010692

Clarity 6A modular patch cord, 7', yellow
MC6A07-04 Ortronics
Product Line Legrand
UPC Number 662875010746

Legrand® Duplex Fiber Optic
Patch Cord (LC - LC),
Multimode 50/125 for Standard
Performance Systems, 3M
Ortronics (Legrand)
MFR # OR-P1DF2LRGZGZ003M

Legrand® Duplex Fiber Optic
Patch Cord (LC - LC)
Multimode 50/125 for Standard
Performance Systems, 2M
Ortronics (Legrand)
MFR # OR-P1DF2LRGZGZ002M

Cable Management Panel:
Five horizontal polycarbonate
plastic distribution rings
1.75 H x 6 in D - 1 rack unit - black
808045590 Ortronics
UPC Number 662875428251
Product Line Legrand

APC power management:
UPS 1500RM
SNMP APC 9630
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